Watkins, Robert

From: Watkins, Robert

Sent: Wednesday, February 16, 2022 4:01 PM
To: robert@formworkusa.com

Cc: Werner, Jeffrey B

Subject: February BAR Action - 310 East Main Street

Certificate of Appropriateness Application
BAR 21-10-04

310 East Main Street, TMP 28004100
Downtown ADC District

Owner: Armory 310 East Main, LLC
Applicant: Robert Nichols/Formworks
Project: Facade renovations/alterations

Dear Robert,

The above referenced project was discussed before a meeting of the City of Charlottesville Board of Architectural
Review (BAR) on February 15, 2022. The following action was taken:

The applicant requests a deferral.
James Zehmer moves to accept the applicant’s request for a deferral.
Breck Gastinger seconds motion. Motion passes unanimously (9-0).

If you would like to hear the specifics of the discussion, the meeting video is on-line at:
https://boxcast.tv/channel/vabajtzezuyv3iclkxla?b=tycoam74nerhajuktwgz .

If you have any questions, please contact me at watkinsro@charlottesville.gov.

Sincerely,
Robert Watkins

Robert Watkins

Assistant Historic Preservation and Design Planner
Neighborhood Development Services

PO Box 911

Charlottesville, VA 22902



CITY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE

BOARD OF ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW
STAFF REPORT

February 15, 2022

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

Background
Year Built:  1916. In 1956 the north facade was reconstructed. The existing north fagade was

constructed in 1982. (South facade may have been built at this same time.)
District: Downtown ADC District
Status: Contributing (Note: When the district was established, all existing structures were
designated contributing.)

Prior BAR Review
October 19, 2021: BAR review this project and accepted applicant’s request for a deferral (8-0).

Application
e Submittal: Formwork Design drawings 370 East Main Street, dated January 21, 2022: Cover; Sheet 2,

Context - East Main Street; Sheet 3, Context - Water Street; Sheet 4, East Main Street Views; Sheet 5,
Elevator Shaft Decorative Scheme; Sheet 6, Water Street Views; Sheet 7, Mall Level Plan

CoA request for alterations to the Main Street (north) and Water Street (south) facades. The proposed
work will alter the 20™ century facades. See Appendix for comparison of October 2021 submittal and
present submittal.

Discussion and Recommendations

The original, 1916 facades no longer exist. The proposed alterations will replace the contemporary
facades constructed in the 1980s. The November 1980 National Register nomination of the Charlottesville
and Albemarle County Courthouse Historic District does not include this address, nor do any of the
building descriptions for this block match the current design. Unless the building [the facades] are of
exceptional importance, it does not meet the 50-year threshold necessary for consideration for the
National Register.
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A Property that can be Nominated for Listing in the Registers should:
e Have achieved historical significance at least 50 years prior to today and/or is of exceptional
importance; and
e Is associated with at least one of the following:
O An important event or historic trend;
O A significant person whose specific contributions to history can be identified and documented;
0 An important architectural or engineering design; or it represents the work of a master; or it is
a distinguishable entity although its components may lack individual distinction;
0 Has the potential to answer important research questions about human history (most
commonly these properties are archaeological sites); and
e Retain physical integrity through retention of historic materials, appearance, design, and other
physical features.

There are two questions for the BAR to discuss:

1. Do the existing facades—together or singularly; as part of the mall or as a single structure; and due to
age, design, architect. and/or other factors—contribute to historic character of the Downtown ADC
and should they be protected? (Emphasizing that an ADC District is a City designation, and not
dependent on state or national designation.)

2. If'the facades are to be altered--together or singularly—are the proposed changes consistent with the
ADC District Design Guidelines?

Additionally, due to the unique nature of the existing facades, the BAR might consider applying
components of the design standards for both New Construction and for Rehabilitation.

The applicant has not specified the glass to be used. The BAR may request that information or address it
as a condition of approval. In the Appendix is a summary of BAR’s July 17, 2018 discussion re: glass.

Suggested Motions

Approval: Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design
Guidelines, I move to find that the proposed facade alterations at 310 East Main Street satisfy the BAR’s
criteria and are compatible with this property and other properties in the Downtown ADC district, and that
the BAR approves the application [as submitted].

or [as submitted with the following conditions/modifications: ...].

Denial: Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City’s ADC District
Design Guidelines, I move to find that the proposed facade alterations at 310 East Main Street do not
satisfy the BAR’s criteria and are not compatible with this property and other properties in the Downtown
ADC district, and for the following reasons the BAR denies the application ...

Criteria, Standards and Guidelines

Review Criteria Generally

Sec. 34-284(b) of the City Code states that, in considering a particular application the BAR shall approve

the application unless it finds:

(1) That the proposal does not meet specific standards set forth within this division or applicable
provisions of the Design Guidelines established by the board pursuant to Sec.34-288(6); and
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(2) The proposal is incompatible with the historic, cultural or architectural character of the district in
which the property is located or the protected property that is the subject of the application.

Pertinent Standards for Review of Construction and Alterations include:

(1) Whether the material, texture, color, height, scale, mass and placement of the proposed addition,
modification or construction are visually and architecturally compatible with the site and the
applicable design control district;

(2) The harmony of the proposed change in terms of overall proportion and the size and placement of
entrances, windows, awnings, exterior stairs and signs;

(3) The Secretary of the Interior Standards for Rehabilitation set forth within the Code of Federal
Regulations (36 C.F.R. §67.7(b)), as may be relevant;

(4) The effect of the proposed change on the historic district neighborhood;

(5) The impact of the proposed change on other protected features on the property, such as gardens,
landscaping, fences, walls and walks;

(6) Whether the proposed method of construction, renovation or restoration could have an adverse impact
on the structure or site, or adjacent buildings or structures;

(7) Any applicable provisions of the City’s Design Guidelines.

Pertinent Guidelines for New Construction and Additions include:

I. Windows and Doors

1) The rhythm, patterns, and ratio of solids (walls) and voids (windows and doors) of new buildings
should relate to and be compatible with adjacent historic facades.

a. The majority of existing buildings in Charlottesville’s historic districts have a higher
proportion of wall area than void area except at the storefront level.

b. Inthe West Main Street corridor in particular, new buildings should reinforce this traditional
proportion.

2) The size and proportion, or the ratio of width to height, of window and door openings on new
buildings’ primary facades should be similar and compatible with those on surrounding historic
facades.

a. The proportions of the upper floor windows of most of Charlottesville’s historic buildings are
more vertical than horizontal.
b. Glass storefronts would generally have more horizontal proportions than upper floor openings.

3) Traditionally designed openings generally are recessed on masonry buildings and have a raised
surround on frame buildings. New construction should follow these methods in the historic districts as
opposed to designing openings that are flush with the rest of the wall.

4) Many entrances of Charlottesville’s historic buildings have special features such as transoms,
sidelights, and decorative elements framing the openings. Consideration should be given to
incorporating such elements in new construction.

5) Darkly tinted mirrored glass is not an appropriate material for windows in new buildings within the
historic districts.

6) If small-paned windows are used, they should have true divided lights or simulated divided lights with
permanently affixed interior and exterior muntin bars and integral spacer bars between the panes of
glass.

7) Avoid designing false windows in new construction.

8) Appropriate material for new windows depends upon the context of the building within a historic
district, and the design of the proposed building. Sustainable materials such as wood, aluminum-clad
wood, solid fiberglass, and metal windows are preferred for new construction. Vinyl windows are
discouraged.

9) Glass shall be clear. Opaque spandrel glass or translucent glass may be approved by the BAR for
specific applications.
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K. Street-Level Design

1) Street level facades of all building types, whether commercial, office, or institutional, should not have
blank walls; they should provide visual interest to the passing pedestrian.

2) When designing new storefronts or elements for storefronts, conform to the general configuration of
traditional storefronts depending on the context of the sub-area. New structures do offer the
opportunity for more contemporary storefront designs.

3) Keep the ground level facades(s) of new retail commercial buildings at least eighty percent transparent
up to a level of ten feet.

4) Include doors in all storefronts to reinforce street level vitality.

5) Articulate the bays of institutional or office buildings to provide visual interest.

6) Institutional buildings, such as city halls, libraries, and post offices, generally do not have storefronts,
but their street levels should provide visual interest and display space or first floor windows should be
integrated into the design.

7) Office buildings should provide windows or other visual interest at street level.

8) Neighborhood transitional buildings in general should not have transparent first floors, and the design
and size of their facade openings should relate more to neighboring residential structures.

9) Along West Main Street, secondary (rear) facades should also include features to relate appropriately
to any adjacent residential areas.

10) Any parking structures facing on important streets or on pedestrian routes must have storefronts,
display windows, or other forms of visual relief on the first floors of these elevations.

11) A parking garage vehicular entrance/exit opening should be diminished in scale, and located off to the
side to the degree possible.

Pertinent Guidelines for Rehabilitation include:

B. Facades and Storefronts

Over time, commercial buildings are altered or remodeled to reflect current fashions or to eliminate
maintenance problems. Often these improvements are misguided and result in a disjointed and
unappealing appearance. Other improvements that use good materials and sensitive design may be as
attractive as the original building and these changes should be saved. The following guidelines will help
to determine what is worth saving and what should be rebuilt.

1) Conduct pictorial research to determine the design of the original building or early changes.

2) Conduct exploratory demolition to determine what original fabric remains and its condition.

3) Remove any inappropriate materials, signs, or canopies covering the facade.

4) Retain all elements, materials, and features that are original to the building or are contextual
remodelings, and repair as necessary.

5) Restore as many original elements as possible, particularly the materials, windows, decorative details,
and cornice.

6) When designing new building elements, base the design on the “Typical elements of a commercial
facade and storefront” (see drawing next page).

7) Reconstruct missing or original elements, such as cornices, windows, and storefronts, if
documentation is available.

8) Design new elements that respect the character, materials, and design of the building, yet are
distinguished from the original building.

9) Depending on the existing building’s age, originality of the design and architectural significance, in
some cases there may be an opportunity to create a more contemporary fagade design when
undertaking a renovation project.

10) Avoid using materials that are incompatible with the building or within the specific districts, including
textured wood siding, vinyl or aluminum siding, and pressure-treated wood,
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11) Avoid introducing inappropriate architectural elements where they never previously existed.

Appendix:
Summary of BAR Discussion July 17, 2018 re: Clear Glass: BAR concluded that VLT 70 should remain

the preference relative to clear glass. However, they acknowledged the case-by-case flexibility offered in
the Design Guidelines; specifically, though not exclusively, that this allows for the consideration of
alternatives—e.g. VLTs below 70--and that subsequent BAR decisions regarding glass should be guided
by the project’s location (e.g. on the Downtown Mall versus a side street), the type of windows and
location on the building (e.g. a street level storefront versus the upper floors of an office building), the
fenestration design (e.g. continuous glass walls versus punched windows), energy conservation goals, the
intent of the architectural design, matching historical glass, and so on.

Comparisons of proposed elevations
October 2021 Submittal:

February 2022 Submittal:
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	SITE DESIGN AND PORTICO ENTRANCE: 
	SITE DESIGN AND PORTICO ENTRANCE: 
	The west portion of the site has undergone several adjustments and enhancements since the initial presentation. To create a more 
	significant plaza space with better proportions, the building portico 
	entrance was foreshortened/truncated adding seventeen feet to the 
	plaza. This adjustment allowed for an additional row of trees creating 
	two groups of three framing the enlarged elliptical form. The elliptical form, a theme that continues into the lobby and courtrooms, represents harmony and cooperation for the greater good.  
	Figure
	To preserve the function of accessible on-street parking and emergency access, the parallel parking lane remains as currently exists along 
	Park Street. Lighting in the plaza is all indirect with integrated bench 
	downlighting, and spillover light from the portico entrance.  The 
	seat walls and benches have been simplified to be rectilinear in the 
	space and tucked next to the shade trees, freeing the ellipse to be an unencumbered monumental and ceremonial space. 
	EAST HIGH STREET 
	STAIRS, WALL, AND PLANTING AT LEVY 
	GARAGE RAMP FRONTAGE TO REMAIN, STAIRS TO BE REPAIRED AND REPOINTED. 
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	NEW WEST SITE BUILDING 
	REDLANDS CLUB 
	EAST JEFFERSON STREET 
	7TH STREET NE 
	PARK STREET 
	20' Scale: 1/32"=1' 0' 40' 60' NORTH 
	The portico architecture has continued refinement. The original five-
	bay portico has been reduced to a three-bay portico, reminiscent of the west site entrances and Levy, creating an A-B-A arrangement with bookended corners. The smaller fenestration on the corners appropriately expresses the functions within. The portico is a modern expression of slender steel columns with a brise soleil roof. 
	A small weatherlock with glazing muntins recalling the surrounding 
	fenestration protects guests from the elements. The cornice lines 
	have been adjusted and refined. The primary architrave is aligned with 
	the pilaster capital of the Levy Building. The cornices are arranged within three groupings: the primary building mass (courtrooms), the entrance massing and chambers (secondary height), and the hyphen connecting Levy (tertiary height). The primary cornice is slightly lower than the Levy and thus deferential to the historic structure. The coloration of the cornice/trim elements is deliberately intended to be similar in color to the brick so as to create a backdrop to the 18th and early to mid-19th century a
	the pilaster capital of the Levy Building. The cornices are arranged within three groupings: the primary building mass (courtrooms), the entrance massing and chambers (secondary height), and the hyphen connecting Levy (tertiary height). The primary cornice is slightly lower than the Levy and thus deferential to the historic structure. The coloration of the cornice/trim elements is deliberately intended to be similar in color to the brick so as to create a backdrop to the 18th and early to mid-19th century a
	portico and window coloration of light blue / gray again is a deferential nod to the historic fabric, intentionally avoiding mimicking the trim detailing of the historic elements and  maintaining a civic character and complementary relationship. 

	Figure
	The design team and County leadership are in the process of negotiating removal or replacement of trees in question along the property edge at the Jessup House and Redlands Club. 

	FACADE DESIGN: 
	FACADE DESIGN: 
	The façade has undergone a thorough refinement of the brick detailing and proportional relationships. The façade is broken into a base, ground story, second story (piano nobile / courts floor), and cornice/ top. Brick corbeling and matching cast stone are integrated into belts and cornices in keeping with the monochromatic palette. Bricks 
	are a custom blend of four types to sensitively respond to the rich range of colors of the west site; bricks are a Norman brick proportion to distinguish new from historic brickwork. Three sample boards 
	under consideration are included as part of this submission. Mortar is matching the brick to reduce the contrasting colors and create a harmonious relationship in the complex of judicial buildings. 
	Figure
	The watertable is a very subtle two-to-four inch step in cast stone matching the brick.  The two-story order directly corresponds to the Levy Building order and the 1803 portico, giving a clear message of the civic purpose of the building. Equally, the light blue/gray window shapes are a departure from the 6 over 6, or 9 over 9 divided lite double hung windows common to the neighboring buildings. The penthouse is deeply set back from the building and is not in view from several vantage points. The screen wa
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